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South Otago High School

Statement of Responsibility

For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Board accepts responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the judgements used in

these f inancial statements.

The management, including the principal and others as directed by the Board, accepts responsibility for establishing
and maintaining a system ol jnternal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the School's financial reporting.

It is the opinion of the Board and management that the annual financial statements for the financial year ended 31

December 2022 fairly rellects the financial position and operations of the School.

The School's 2022 financial slatements are authorised for issue by the Board

Julian James wi Lt Mike wright

Full Name of Presiding lvlember Full Name of Principal

f*" t
Signature of Presiding Member Signature of Principal

Date: 31 Mav 2023 Date: 31 14u, 2923



South Otago High School
Members of the Board
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Na me

Term
Expired/

How Position Gained Expires

Jules Witt

Mike Wright

Paul Crawford

Bronwyn Campbell

Angela Ferguson

Emma Kell

Louise Simpson

Mike Beeby

Ryan Williams

Position

Presiding Member

Principal

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Parent Flepresentative

Staff Representative

Student Representative

Elected

ex O{ficio

Elected

Elected

Selected

Elected

Elected

Elected

Elected

Dec 2023

Sep 2022

Sep 2025

Sep 2025

Dec 2023

Sep 2025

Sep 2025

Oct 2023
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South Otago High School
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

2022 2021

Actual
$

Aclual
$

Revenue
Government Grants
Locally Raised Funds
lnterest lncome

Expenses
Locally Raised Funds
Learning Resources
Administration
Finance
Property
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

6,316,103
608,333

52,682

5,820,593
602,837

18.000

6.006,405
571 ,190

17,454
6,977,'t18 6.441.430 6.595.049

2
3

3
4
5

6

388,547
4,668,849

343,109
3,464

1,381,371
8,691

376,590
4,605,807

289.207

372,272
4,743,220

282,588
3,471

1,211,937
'1,015

1,193,564
2,500

6,794,03'1

'183,087

6,467,668

(26,238)

6,614,503

(19,454)Net Surplus / (Dellcit) for the year

Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

Total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for lhe Year 18s,087 (26,238) (19,454)

The above Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes which lorm part of these linancial stalements.
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South Otago High School
Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Noles

2022

Aclual

u

2021

Actual

$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

Equity at I January

Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year
Contributions lrom the NIinistry o, Education

Contribution - Furniture and Equipment Grant

Equity at 3l December

Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense

Equlty at 31 December

2.633,923 2.633.923 2.637 997

183,087 (26,238) (19,454)

15,380

2,817,010 2,607,685 2,633,923

2,817,010 2,607,685 2,633,923

2o17o1-2,607 S85 2,63s,929

The above Statement ol Changes in Net Assets/Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes which

form part of these financial stalements.
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South Otago High School
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

2022

Aclual
$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

Actual
$

2021

Notes

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
GST Receivable
Prepayments
lnvestments
Funds Receivable for Capital Works Projects

Current Llabililles
Accounts Payable
Revenue Received in Advance
Provision for Cyclical Maintenance
Paintlng Contract Llability
Finance Lease Liabillty
Funds held in Trust
Funds held lor Capital Works Projects
Funds Held on Behalf ol the ALLis Cluster
Funds Held on Behalf of the Truancy Cluster
Funds Held on Behalf of the Big Biver Kahi Ako Cluster
Funds Held on Behali of the Bi Cultural Support Worker Cluster

Working Capilal Surplus/(Deticit)

Non-current Assets
lnveslments
Property, Plant and Equipment

805,713
36,4,889

13,509
16,065

1,698,421
45,414

2,944,011 3,021,725 3,024,347

7
I

971.649
335,603

17,514
19,123

1.677.836

974,271
335,603

17,514
19,123

1,677,836
16

11

12
13
13
14
15

16
17
18

20

I
10

407,185
57,332

385,066

493,250
13,801

1 15,000

37,735
20,539
16,044
46,534
38,678
49,297
10,'170

44,976
14,447

347,029
46,534

493,250
13,801

345,396

44,976
14,447

347,029
46,534

1,069,580

1,A74,431

1,075,037

1,946.688

1,305,433

'1,718,914

1,046,392 1.',j59,792 1,',|00,292
1,046,392 1,159,792 1,100,292

Non-currenl Llabllities
Borrowings
Provision lor Cyclical Mainlenance
Painting Contract Liability
Finance Lease Liability
Funds held in Trust

103.813 498,795 185,283

Net Assets 21817,010 2,507,685 2,63s,923

Equity 2,u7,010 2,607,685 2,633,923

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with lhe accompanying notes which lorm part ol

these financial statements.

11

13

t3
14
15

94,338

9,475

461,945

36,850

148.433

36.850
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South Otago High School
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Aclual
$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
s

Actual
$

2021

Note

Cash llows lrom Operating Activities

Government Grants
Locally Raised Funds
lnternational Students
Goods and Services Tax (net)
Payments to Employees

Payments to Suppliers
lnterest Received
Net cash lrom/(to) Operating Activities

Cash llows lrom lnvesting Activlties
Purchase of Properly Plant & Equipment
Purchase of lnveslments
Net cash (lo)/from lnvesiing Activilies

Cash llows lrom Financing Activitles
Furniture and Equipment Grant
Finance Lease Payments
Funds Adminislered on Behalf ol Third Parlies
Net cash (to)/from Financing Activities

Nel (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year

1,662,444
612,051

32,282
4,005

(800,971)

(1,220,162)
34,979

1 ,409,226
602,837 580,137

(3,340)
(826,983)

11,400,767],
23,374

(659,902)

(1,143,283)
18,000

7

7

324,62A 226,878 (55,357)

(160,418)
(20,58s)

(229,s00) (209,9s0)
(18,791)

(181,00s) (229,s00) (228,741\

(40,021)
(272,162\
(312,183) 523,581

(168,558) (2.622\ 239,483

974,271 974,271 734,788

805,713 971,649 97 4,271

The statement of cash flows records only those cash flows directly within the control of the School. This means centrally

lunded teachers' salaries and the use of land and buildings grant and expense have been excluded.

The above Stalement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes which form part of these

financial statements.

lBpo
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15,380
(48,515)
556,716
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South Otago High School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Slatement ol Accounting Policies

1.1. Beportlng Entlty
South Otago High School (the School) is a Crown enlity as specified in the Crown Entities Act 2004 and a school as described
in the Education and Training Act 2020. The Board is ot the view that the School is a public benefit entity lor financial reporting
purposes.

1.2. Basis of Preparation
Beporting Period
The linancial statements have been prepared lor the psriod 1 Januaty 2022lo 31 December 2022 and in accordance with the
requirements of the Educalion and Training Act 2020.

Basls ol Prcpantlon
The linancial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the accounting policies have been consislently
applied throughout the period.

Flnancial Beporting Standads Applied
The Education and Training Act 2020 requires the School, as a Crown entity, to prepare linanciai statements in accordance
wilh generally accepted accounting practice. The llnancial staiements have been prepared in accordance with generally

accepled accounting practice in New Zealand, applying Public Sector Public Benelit Entily (PBE) Standards Beduced
Disclosure Regime as appropriate to public benefit entilies thal quality for Tier 2 reporting. Ihe school is considered a Public

Benefit Entity as it meets the criteria specified as'having a primary objective to provide goods and/or servaces for community

or social benefat and where any equity has been provided with a view lo supporting lhal primary obiective rather than lor
linancial return to equity holders'.

PBE Accountlng Slandatds Reduced Disclosure Begime
The School qualilies lor Tier 2 as the school s not publicly accountable and ls not considered large as it lalls below the

expendlture threshold of $30 million per year. All relevant reduced disclosure concessions have been taken.

Measurement Base
The linancial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise noted in a specilic accounting policy

Presentatlon Currency
These linancial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, rounded to the nearest whole dollar

Critical Accoun,ing *timales And Assumplions
The preparation ol linancial statements requires management to make judoements. estimates and assumptions that allect lhe

application ol accounting policies and the reported amounts ol assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results may

dilfer lrom these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the eslimate is revised and in any luture periods allected.

Cyclical Maintenance
A school recognises its obligation to maintain the Ministry's buildings in a good slate of repair as a provision for cyclical

maintenance. This provision relates mainly lo the painting of the school buildings. The estimale is based on the school's best

estimate of the cost ol painting the school and when ihe school is required to be painted, based on an assessment of the

school's condition. During the year,lhe Board assesses the reasonableness of its painting mainlenance plan on which the

provision is based. Cyclical maintenance is disclosed at note 13.

lJselul lives ol propedy, planl and equipment
The School reviews the estimated useful lives ol property, plant and equipmenl at lhe end ol each reporiing date. The School

believes that the estimated useful lives of the property. plant and equipment as disclosed in the signilicant accounting policies

are appropriate to the nature of the property, plant and equipment at reporting date. Property, plant and equipment is

disclosed al note 10.

C ticalJudgements in applying accounling Policies

IBDO 7
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Specili c Acc o u n t i n g Pol i ci es
The accounling policies used in the preparation ot these financia statements are set out below



Recognition ol grants
The School reviews the grants monies received at the end ol each reporting period and whether any require a provision lo
carry lorward amounts unspent. The School believes all grants received have been appropriately recognised as a liability it
required. Government grants are disclosed at note 2.

1,3. Revenue Recognilion

Government Grants
The school receives tunding from the Ministry ol Education. The following are the main types ot Iunding that the School
receives,

Teachers salaries grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the lunding in the salary period to which
they relate. The grants are not received in cash by the School and are paid directly to teachers by the lrinistry ol Education.

Other Ministry Grants for directly lunded programmes are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the funding
in the period to which they relate. The grants are not received in cash by the School and are paid directly by the Ministry ol
Education.

The property lrom which the School operates is owned by the Crown and managed by the Ministry of Education on behali of
the Crown. Grants lor the use of land and buildings are not received in cash by the School as they equate to the deemed
expense ior using the land and bulldings wh ch are owned by lhe Crown. The School's use ol the land and buildings as

occupant is based on a property occupancy document as gazetted by the Ministry. The expense is based on an assumed
market rental yield on the value ol land and buildings as used for rating purposes.

This is a non-cash revenue thal is oflset by a non-cash expense. The use ol land and buildings grants and associated

expenditure are recorded in the period the School uses the land and buildings.

qher Granls wherc conditions exist
Other grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rlghts to the funding, unless there are unlullilled conditions

attached to the grant, in whlch case ihe amounl relating to the unfullilled conditions is recognised as a liabilily and recognised

as revenue as the conditions are lulfilled.

Donations, Gills and Bequesls
Donations, gilts and bequests are recognised as an asset and revenue when the right to receive lunding or the asset has

been established unless there is an obligation to relurn lunds if condilions are nol met. ll conditions are not met funding is

recognised as revenue in advance and recognised as revenue when conditions are satisfied.

lnterest Bevenue
lnterest Revenue earned on cash and cash equivalents and investments is recorded as revenue in the period it is earned.

1,4. Operatlng Lease Payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in lhe Statement ot Comprehensive Revenue and Expense on a

straight line basis over the term ol the lease.

1.5. Finance Lease Payments
Finance lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction oi the outstanding liability. The

linance charge is allocated to each period during lhe lease term on an elfective interest basis

1.6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

IBDO B
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lvlanagement has exercised the following crilical judgements in applying accounting policaes:

Class i li cation ol le ases
Determining whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease requires judgement as to whether the lease transters
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the school. A lease is classified as a finance lease if lt transfers
substanllally all risks and rewards incidentalto ownership ol an underlying asset to the lessee. ln conlrast, an operating lease
is a lease that does not transfer subslanlially allthe risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.
Judgement is required on various aspects thal include, but are nol limiled to, the fair value of the leased asset, the economic
life of the leased asset, whether or not to include renewal options in the lease term, and determining an appropriate discount
rate to calculate the present value of the minimum lease payments. Classification as a linance lease means the asset is

recognised in the statement ol financial position as propedy, plant, and equipment, whereas lor an operating lease no such
asset is recognised. Finance lease liability disclosures are contained in note 14. Fulure operating lease commitments are
disclosed in note 25b,

Operalional grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the lunding, !,/hich is in the year that the
lunding is received.



Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank balances, deposits held at callwilh banks. The carrying amounl of
cash and cash equivalents represent fair value.

1,7. Accounls Receivable
Short-term receivables are recorded at the amount due, less an allowance for expected credit losses (uncollectable debts).
The school's receivables are largely made up of funding from the Ministry ol Education, therefore the level ol uncolleclable
debts is not considered to be material. However. short-term receivables are writlen off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

1.8. lnveslmenls
Bank term deposits are inilially measured at the arnount invesled. lnterest is subsequently accrued and added to the
investment balance. A loss allowance lor expecled credit losses is recognised il the estimated loss ailowance is not triv al

1.9. Properly, Plant and Equipmenl
Land and buildings owned by the Crown are excluded lrom these ,inancial statements. The Board's use of the land and
buildings as'occupant' is based on a property occupancy document.

lmprovements funded by the Board to buildings owned by the Crown or directly by the board are recorded at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipmenl are recorded al cost or. in the case of donated assels, lair value at the dale of receipt, less
accumulated deprecialion and impairment losses. Cost or lair value as the case may be, includes those costs that relate
direclly to bringing the asset to the location where it will be used and making sure il is in the appropriale condition for its
inlended use.

Gains and losses on disposals (i.e. sold or given away) are determined by comparing the proceeds received with the carrying
amounts (i.e. lhe book value). The gain or loss arising lrom the disposal ol an item ol property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the Staiement ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

Financc Leases
A linance lease translers to lhe lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ol an asset, whether or
not title is eventually translerred. At the start of the lease term, ,inance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the
statement ol linancial position at the lower of the lair value ol the leased asset or the presenl value ol the minimum lease
payments. The finance charge is charged to lhe Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense over lhe lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. The amounl recognised as an asset
is depreciated over its useful life, lf there is no reasonable certainty whether the school will obtain ownership at the end ol the
lease term, the asset is fully depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.

Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, except lor library resources, are depreclaled over their estimated usetul lives on a straight line

basis. Library resources are depreciated on a diminishing value basis. Depreciation ol allassets is reporled in the Statement
of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The estimated uselul lives ol the assets are
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment
lnf ormation and communication technology
Motor vehicles
Leased assets held under a Finance Lease
Library resources

1 .10. lmpalrmenl ol property, plant and equipment
The school does not hold any cash generaling assets. Assets are considered cash generating where their primary objectlve is

to generate a commercial return.

Non cash generaling assets
Property, ptant, and equipment held at cost that have a finite useful lile are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. lf such indication exists, the School
estimates the assefs recoverable service amount. An impairment loss is recognised as the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher ol an assei's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated replacement cost approach, restoration cosl

approach, or a service unils approach. The most appropriate approach used to measure value in use depends on the nature

o, the impairment and availability of information.

lBpo
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10-40 years
3-40 years
3-20 years
5-10 years
Term ol Lease
1 2.57" Diminishing value
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ln determining fair value less costs to sell the school engages an independent valuer to assess market value based on the
besl available intormation.

lf an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amouni, the asset is regarded as impaked and the carrying
amount is written down to the recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the Statement ol
Comprehensrve Revenue and Expense.

The reversal ol an impairment loss is recognised ln the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if lhere has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

1,11. Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable represents liabililies for goods and services provided to the School prior to the end ol the financial year
which are unpaid. Accounts Payable are recorded at the amount ol cash required to settle those liabilities. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Long -term employee entitlement s
Employee benefits that are not expected to be settled wholly before 12 months atter the end of the reporting period in which
the employee provides the related service, such as retirement and long service leave, have been calculated on an actuarial
basis.

The calculations are based on the likely luture entitlements accruing lo employees, based on years of service, years lo
entillement, the likelihood that employees will reach the point ol entitlement, and contractual entitlement lnlormation, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. Remeasurements are recognised in Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue

and Expense in lhe period in which lhey anse.

1.13. Bevenue Beceived in Advance
Revenue received in advance relates to fees received from students and grants recejved where there are unfullilled

obligations,or the School to provide services in the ,uture. The lees are recorded as revenue as the obligations are lulfilled

and lhe lees earned.

The School holds sufticient lunds to enable the relund of unearned lees in relation to international studenls, should the School

be unable to provide the services to which they relate.

1.14. Funds Held in Trust
Funds are held in trust where they have been received by the School lor a specilied purpose, or are being held on behall of a

third party and these transactions are nol recorded in the Statemenl of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The School holds sufficient funds to enable the funds to be used tor their intended purpose at any time.

1.15. Funds held lor Capitalworks
The school directly receives funding from the Ministry of Education lor capital works projects that are included in the School

five year capital works agreement. These lunds are held on behal, and ior a specified purpose as such these transactions

are not recorded in the Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

The School holds sullicient lunds to enable the funds to be used tor the I intended purpose at any lime

1.16. Shared Funds
Shared Funds are held on behall ol a cluster of participating schools as agreed with the Ministry ol Education. ln instances

where lunds are outside of lhe School's control, these amounts are not recorded in the Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue

and Expense. ln instances where the school is determined to be the principal for providing the service related to the Shared

Funds (such as the Resource Teachers of Learning & Behaviour programme), all income and expenditure related to the

provision ol lhe service is recorded in the Statemenl of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. The School holds sufficient

lunds to enable the lunds to be used lor their intended purpose.

1.17. Provlslon lor Cycllcal Maintenance
The property trom whiCh the School operates is owned by the Crown, and is vested in the Ministry. The lvlinistry has gazetted

a properly occupancy documenl that sets oul the Board's property mainlenance responsibilities.

IBDO
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1.12. Employee Entltlements
Shotl-tem employee enti ements
Employee entitlements that are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end ot the reporting period in which the
employees provide the related service are measured based on accrued entitlements at currenl rates ol pay. These include
salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned by non ieaching sta,f, but not yet taken at balance date.
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Cyclical maintenance, which involves painting ol the School, makes up the most signilicant part of the Board's responsibilities
outside the day-to-day maintenance. The provision is a reasonable estimate, based on the schools best estimate of the cost
ol painling the school and when the School is required to be painled. based on an assessment of the school's condition.

The School carries out painting maintenance of the whole school over a variety ol periods in accordance with the conditional
assessment ol each area ol the school. The economic outfloly ol this is dependent on the plan established by the School to
meel this obliOatron and is detailed in the notes and disclosures ol these accounts.

1.18. Flnanclal lnstrumenls
The School's financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and investments. All of thsse
financial assets, are initially recognised al fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the etfective interest
method.

The School's lanancial liabilities comprise accounts payable and finance lease liability. Financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amo.iised cost using the eflective inlerest method. lnterest expense and any gain or loss on derecognltion are
recognised in the Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

1.19. Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis, with the exception of accounts receivable and
accounts payable which are stated as GST inclusive.

The net amount of GST paid to, or received from, the lRD, including the GST relating to investing and linancing activities, is

classilied as a net operating cash flow in the statements of cash llows.

Commitments and contingencies ars disclosed exclusive of GST.

'1.20. Budget Figures
The budget figures are extracted from the School budget that was approved by the Board

IBDO
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1.21. Services received in-kind
From time to time the School receives services in-kind, including the time of volunteers. The School has elected not to

recognise services recelved in kind in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.



Government Grants - Minislry ot Educalion
Tgachers' Salaries Grants
Use of Land and Buildings Granls
Olher Government Grants

The School has nol opted in to lhe donalions scheme lor this year

3. Locrlly F.l.od Fuhds

Local lunds raised wilhin the School's communiiy are made up o{:

Bevq rc
Donalions & Baquesls
Curriculum r€lated Aclivilies - Purchase ol goods and servrces
Fe€s lor Exlra Curricular Aclrvilies
Trading
Fundraising & Communily Grants

lnternational Studenl Fees

Actual
$
76,047
97,499

184,205
196,445

3,950
50,143

34

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$
80,100

Aclual
$
54,910

2. Governmenl Grants

Sudus lor the yeat Locally Eised lunds

4. Learnlng Rosourcog

Curicular
lnlormation and Communicallon Technology
Lib6ry Resources
Ernployee Benelits - Salarles
Stafl Developmonl
Deprociation

5. Adminislralion

Audil Fee
Board Fees
Board Expenses
Communicatlon
Consumables
Oparating L6asg
Other
Employee Benelits - Salaries

S€rvice Providers, Conlraclo6 and Consullancy

2022 2022 2021
Budget

Aclual (Unaudited) Actual
i$$

r,638,71r 1,369,869 1,557.182
3,657,007 3,538,491 3,637,469
976,488 77-1,854 771,854
43,897 40,379 39,900

6,316,103 5,820,593 6,006,405

2022 2021

188,004
178.100

7,000
149,633

184,023
176,387

3,960
151,910

Evr€rsos
Extra Curdcular Activities Cosls
Trading
lnlemational Stldent' Studenl Recruitment
lnlernational Studenl - Employee Benelil ' Salaries
lnternational Studenl - Olher Expenses

184,9S7 161,890 161.213
203,539 205,900 210,914

- 2,300 4
- 1.000 34
11 5,500 107

388.547 376,590 372,272

608,333 602.837 571,190

219,786 226.247 198,918

2022 2022 2021
Budget

Actual (Unaudlted) Actual
$$$
264,665 354,066 267,642
50,207 62,300 76,351

3,007 5,000 5,002
4,083,r9S 3,964,291 4,133,4i,2

41,515 50,150 43,531
226,25 170,000 217,262ffi

2022

Actual
$

7,447
4,835

10,325
5,752

15,058
7.88

11 ,1'15
228,406

34,902

2022
Sudget

(Unaudlled)
s

7,407
5.500

10,500
6,100

13,150
10,000
14,450

182,100
25,000

Aciual

7,191

5,002
11,612
5,864

13,561
9,939

16.039
175,222
23,O76

2021

lBpo
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6, Property

7. Cash and Cash Equivalenls

Tolal lnveslments

1,381,371 1,193,564 1,211,937

2022

Aclual
$

805,713

m22
Budget

(Unaudlted)
$
971,649

Actual
$

2022

Actual
$
22,314
53,204
32.901
23,003
59,333

1.311
43,285

976,488
8,537

160,995

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)

21,500
56,900
83,1 16

7,500
52,450

2,200
39,520

771,854
6,500

152,024

Aclual
$
30,035
53,183
50,843

7,819
52,127
2,243

66,519
771,854

6,963
160,351

2021

Carelaking and Cleaning Consumables
Consultancy ard Contracl Services
Cyclical Mainlenance Provision
Grounds
Heat, Lioht and Water

Repairs and Maintenance
Use ol Land and guildings

Security
Employee Benelils ' Salaries

The Use of Land and Buildings ligure represents 5ol. ol the school's tolal property value. Properly values are established as parl ol lhe nalion-
wid6 rovalualion oxercise lhal is conducted every 30 JLJne lor the [,1inistry of Education's year-end reporting purposes.

2021

Bank Accounts
Cash and Cash Equivalenls lor Slalement ol Cash Flows

Recoivablgs
lnteresl Roceivable
Teacher Salaries Granl Roceivable

Rsceivablss f rom Erchango Transactions
Recoivablos from Non.Exchange Transactlons

9. lnvestm.nls

The SchooL's investmenl activilies are classilied as tollows

Currenl Asset
Short-torm Bank Deposits

974 271

The caryino value ot short-tem deposits wilh original matu ly dales ol 90 days or less approximales their lair value.

Ol lhe $805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $16,044 is held by lhe School on behall ol the Ministry ol Education. These lunds have been
provided lor the Minislry as parl ol lh6 school's 5 Y6ar Agreemen! !unding tor upgrades to lhe school's buildin0s. Tho lunds aro required to bg
spent in m23 on Crorm owned school bulldings.

Ol the $805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $38,678 is held by the School on behall ol ths Truancy clusler. See note 18lor details ol how lhe
funding roceivod for lhe cluster has b€en spent in the year.

Ot the 9805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $49,297 is held by the School on behall of lhe Big River Kahi Ako COL cluster. S6e nole 19 lor
details ol how ths lunding received lor lhg clusler has bean spenl in lhe year.

Actual
$
16,983
25,367

2022
Budget

(Unauditod)

$

7,664
318.487

Actual
$

9,452
7,664

318,447

Ot the $805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalenls, $10,170 s held bytheSchoolon behall ol the Bi Culiural Support Worker cluster. See note20lor
details of how lhe lunding rocsived lor the clusler has been spent in the year.

8, Accounts Beceivable

2022 2021

805,7r3 97r,649 974,271

322 539
364.889 335.603 335,603

42,350 17,1 16 17,1 16

322,539 318,447 318

2022 2021

Actual
$

1,698,421

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

r,677,836

Aclual
$

1.677,836

364.889 335.603 33

IBDO
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1,696,421 1,677,E36 1,677,436
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10. Prop€rty, Plant and Equipment

?o22
BuildinO lmprovements
Furnilure and EquipmEnl

lnf ormalion and Communicalion Technology
Molor Vehicles
Leased Assets
Library Besources
Balanco.l 31 Docembe. 2022

Opening
Balanco (NBV)

$
475,495
357,055
110,404
57,300
74.895
25.133

Additions

$
44,857

60,847
58.602

Disposals

$
(3,896)

lmpairmenl

$

Depreciation

$
151,092)

152,087)
(54.704)

121,4O)
(43,908)13,740

3.001

(2.620)

115
7

.245

84.986

714

Reslrlclions
Wilh the exception ol lhe conlraclual rssiriclions relaling to lhe above noled llnanco lsases, lhor€ aro no olher restrictions over the title ol the

school's properly, planl and equipmenl, nor are any properly, planl and eqLripment pledged as security lor liabilities.

Tho nel carrying value ol equipmenl held under a finance lease is $44.727 (2021: S74,895)

80,876

11, Accounls Payable

Credilors

Banking StafllnO Overuso
Employoe Enlillsmenls - Salaries
Employee Enlillements - Leave Accrual

Payables Ior Exchange Transaclions

The carrying value ol payables approximates lheir fair value

12. Revenue Beceived ln Advance

lnternalional Studenl Fees in Advance
Other Bevenue in Advance

ro-7,1s-5- 203750 493,2s0

Building lmprovements
Furnltureand Equipmonl
lnlormation and Communication Technology
l\Iolo. Vehicles
Leased Assels
Library Resources
Balance al 31 December

20D.
Cost or

Valuatlon

1,084.017
1,585,539

669,976
197,620
177,039
103,590

2022
Accumulaled
Oeprcclatlon

s
(618,653)

(1,219,714)
(s58,294)
(161,540)

1132.312)

2022
Net Book

$
465,3M
365,825
1'11,682

36,080
44,727
22,714

2021

Cosl or
Valuatlon

$
1,051.151
1,546,986

642,494
r 97,619
I73,153
1 10,1 19

m21
Accumulaled
Depreclation

$
(575,666)

{1,189,921)
(s32,094)
(r 40,319)

(98.258)

2021

Nel Book
value

$
475,495
357,065
110,404

57,300
74,895
25,133

2022

13,801-------233- 13,801 13,801

Aclual
$
24.761

7,406
7,2*

336.794
30.966

202, 2021
Budget

(Unaudited) Actual
s$
128,693 128,693

7,191 7,191
1,022 1,022

331.395 331,395

14!99 11!{s

Actual
s
32.218
25,084

2022
Budget

(unaudited)
$

2021

Aclual
$

13.801

IBDO
BDO INVERCARGITL

Total(NSV)

$
455,364
365,825
'111,682

36,060
44,727

2022

407.185 493,250 493,250
ffi



13. Provislon lor Cyclical Mainlenance

Provsron at lhe slan of lhe Year
lncroase lo the ProvLsion During the Year

Other Adtustments
lJse ot lhe Provisron Dur ng the Year
Provrsion al the End ol lhe Year

Actual
$

493,829
83,495

(50,594)
(46,326)

20?2
Budgot

(Unaudiled)
$
493,829

83,116

Aclual
$

541,142
78,083

117,240)
(108,156)

2022 2021

345.396
148 433

480,404 576,945 493,829

the School's cyclical mainlsnance schedulo details annual painting & other signilicant cyclical maintenance v!/ork lo be undedaken. The costs

associaled with lhis annualwork willvary depending on lhe requiremenls during ihe yoar. This plan is based on the School's most roconl 10 Year

Properly plan, adjusted as identilied and conlifined appropriale bythe Board, to olher reliable sources ol evldence-

14. Finance Lease Liabilily

The School has onlered inlo a numb€r ot finance leas6 agreements lor compulors and other ICT equipment. Minimum lease payments payable

386,066
94.338

115,000
461,945

2022 2022 2021
gudg6t

Aclual (Unaudlted) Actual

$$i
39,627 47.574 47,574
9,919 38,080 38,080
(2,336) (3,828) (s,828)
47,210 81,826 81,826

37.735
9.475

44,976 44,975
36.850 36,850

2022

Aclual

2022
Budqet

(Unaudited)

$

Aclual

s

15. Funds Held in Trust

Funds Held in Trusl on Behall ol Third Parlies _ Currenl

Pomahaka Block Upgrade 1204635 & 223973
Rinq Waler Main
Block D Modilicalion Accessibility - rel: 219244

Boiler Scheduled Work
Turl Ouldoor Courl Resurlaclng #228897
Paving and Rslaining Walls #221626
Gymnasium Entrance & lnlsrnal lraintenance
Totals

--------v77n
81 326 81,826

Cyclical Maintenance - Cuftenl
Cyclical Mainlenance - Non cu.ronl

No Later lhan One Year

Later than One Year and no Laler lhan Five Years
Future Finance Charges

Bepbs€nted by:
Frnance lease liability - Current
Finance lease iabilily - Non current

Reprcsented by:
Funds Held on Behalf oi the Minislry ol Educalion

Funds Roceivable lrom the Minislry ol Educaton

$
20

These {unds relate to arrangemgnls where the School is acting as an agenl. These amounls ars not revenue or expenditure ol the School and

therorore arg nol inctuded io the Statement ot Comprehensive Rovenue and Expense.

16. Funds Hold for C.pllalWorks Prolocts

Ouring lhe year the Schoolreceived and applied funding from tha Minislry of Education lor the lollowing capitalworks projecls. The amounl o,

cash held on behall o, lhe Minislry tor capilaiworks projoct is included under cash and cash equivalents in noio 7.

2022
Opening Receipts
Balances lrom MoEss

Board Closing
Contributions Balances

$$
20.458

5,760
65,147

750
162,000
92,914

43.712

20.000

Payments
$
(54,170)

l,172)
(74,691)

(7s0)
(172,139)
(123,851)

5,588
10,456

10,139
30.937

45.414 45,4r4

lBpo
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(45,414)
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Pomahaka Block Upgrade #:204635 & 223973
Hall Window replacement
Ring Waler Main
Elock 0 Modirication Accessibility - rsl: 219244
Photocopying Room Flood Repairs - 220933
Block F/K Bationalisation
Boiler Scheduled Work
Turl Outdoor Courl Resualaclng f228897
Paving and Retaining Walls #221626
Tolals

Funds Held at Boginning ol the Yoar

Funds Received lrom Ministry of Education

Funds Sp€nl on Bshalj o, the Cluster

Funds Held at Year End

Receipts
from MoE

$
851.312

91

Payments

(590,090)

Board
Conlrlbutlons

$

Closlng
Balances

$
20,454

(2,640)

160.275t

5,750
65,147

2021
Openlng
Balances

$

1240,764)
(e1)

8,400
(4,578)

\797)
450
750

130,000

162.000

(450)
797

94 914 2.000)

7fi
162,000
92,914

317 797 347,0X

Represented bY:
Funds Held on Behall ol lhe lrinis1ry ol Education

17. Funds Held on Behalf ol the ALLIS Cluster

347 029

SoulholagoHighschooListheleadschoolandho|dslundsonbehallAsianLanguageLearninginschool.sPro€ramme(ALLis)

Funds Held at Beginning ol ihe Year

Funds Held al Year End
46,534 ,16.

1g. Funds Held on BehaI ol the Truancy Cluster

soulholagoHighschoolwastheleadschoolandholds{undsonbeha|follheTluancycluster,aoloupolschoolsfundedbylhoMinistryol
Educalion lo share prolessional supporl.

m22
audgel

(Unaudited)
$

53,617

Aclual
$
46.534

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$
46,534

2021

Actual
s
46,534

,534

SouthotagoHighschoolsionedafundlngagreemenlwilhtheMinislryinseplembel20l6,lolthesetup&provisionolAsianlanguageteaching
in the Sourh otago area. ctuster Scrroots rnctt-ia-e dal"rrii,r'i"r."rriair of, irin1on School(3723), cluthavallev (3724)' Millon School(3772)

Romahapa school (38111, noseuanr scrrou lllliui'r,J iiliil, siiirag s"n"ot(3836), St^Joseohs school (Balclulha) (3826), st Mar/s school

(Milton) (s831), The catlins erea scrroor tossa]]io-koii's"r'tooiissasf]rokorn";ko igh school(0392) and waiwera soulh school(3858)'

Funds Held at Beginning ot the Year

Funds Received from Others

Funds Spenl on Behall ol the Clusler
Funds Held at Year End

'19. Funds Hold on Bohall ot lhe BIO Rlvet Kahl Ako Cluslor

south otago High schoolwas the l6ad schooland holds lunds on behall of the Big Biver KahiAko coL clusler' a group ol schools tundod bylhe

Ministry ol Education lo share prolessional suppod

2021

2022

Actual
$

2021

Actual
S

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$s

Aclual
$

Funds Held at Beginning ol lhe Year

Funds Roceived trom Clustor Members

Funds Receivsd lrom l\rinisfy ol Educalion

Funds spent on Behall o, the cluster
Funds Held at Year End

20. Fund5 Held on Bohall of the Bi Cullural Supporl Wo*er Cluster

soulhotagoHlghschoo|wasthel€adschoolandholdslundsonbehal'ollheBicu[ulalsupportworkercluslel,agroupolschoolslundedby
th6 Ministryol Educalion to shar€ prolessional supporl'

141,408
20,122

2022

112,

2022

Aclual
$

IBDO
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2022
Budget

(Unaudlled)
$

2021

Aclual
$

16
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2't. Relst€d Pany lransactlonE

The School is a conlrolled entily ol lhe Crown, and the Crown provides lhe major sol./rce of revenue lo the School. The Schoolenters into

transactions with olher entities also controlled by lhe Crown, such as governmenl depanmenis. slale-owned enleQrises and olher Crown entities.

Transactions wilh these entities aro nol disclosed as they occur on lerms and conditions no more or less lavouaable than those thal it rs

reasonable to expecl the Schoolwould have adopled il daaling wilh that enlily al arm s longth.

Belated party disclosures have nol been made lor lransaclions with related padies that are within a normalsupplier or clienl/recipienl relatonship
on terms and condilion no more or less lavourable than those thal it rs reasonable lo expecl the school would have adopted in dealing with lhe
party at aim's length in the samo circumslances. Further, transactions wth other government agencies (lor examplo, Govornment dopanments
and Crown enlities) aro nol disclosed as related parly lransactions when they aro consistent with lhe normal operatlng arrangGmonls belween
government agencios and und€rtakon on lhe normallerms and condilions {oa such transaclons.

22, Remuneralion

4,835 5,002

Key management N$onnol cohpensaton
Koy managsmont personnel ol the School includo alllruste€s oJ the 8oard, Pnncipal, Depuly and Assislant Pincipals, Senior Leadership Suppon
and Sonior Statl Person.

2022
Actual

s

2021
Aclual

$

Boatd Memlrers
Remuneralion

Leade$hip Team
Rsmuneralion
Full-time equivalent members

638,320
5.00

610,852
5.00

Tolal key management personnel remunoration ------q4f-E----q]-!41-
There are seven members of the Boad excluding the Principal. The Board had held lwelve lull meelings o{ the Board in lhe year. The Board also

has tive Finance and live Property members. They meet monlhly, the week prior lo lhe Board meetings. As well as these regular meetings,

including preparation lime, the Presiding Member and olher Board members have also been involved in ad hoc meetings io consider student

wsllare matlors including sland downs, suspsnsions, and olher discipl nary malters.

Pincipal
The tolalvalue ol remuneralion paid or payablg to lhe Principal \0as in the lollowing bands

2022
Actual
$000

175-180
4-5

2021
Actual
$o00

160 - 165
4-5
0-0

Othet Efiployees
The number ol olhor employogs wilh remun€Ialion greater lhan $100,000 was in the lollowng bands:

Tolal
Number o, People

Bemlneratlon m22
$000 FTE Number

100,110 7.00

110 -120 6.00

2021
FTE Number

6.00
6.00

0-0

r3.00 12.00

S S

Tha disclosure lor'Other Employees'do€s not includo remuneration ot lhe Principal.

23. Cornpensstion and Oher Benellts Upon Leavlng

The lotal value ol compensation or other b€netits paid or payable to persons who ceased to be lrustees, colnmitteo membors, or employees

aurinl ttre financiat year in relation to lhal cessaldn and number ol persons to whom all or pad ot that lolalwas payable was as lollow$:

2022
Aclual

2021
Aclual

lBpo
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There are no contingent liabililies and no conlingent assels excepi as noted below as at 31 December 2022 (Contingent liabililies and assots at
31 December 202l: nil).

Holidays Acl Compllanca - schools payroll
The Minislry ol Education pe.rorms payroll processinq and payfients on behall ol boards, through payrollservice provider Education Payroll
Limiled.

24. Contingencies

The Minislrys review ol tha schools seclor payrcllto ensure cofipliance wilh lhe HolldaF Acl2003 is ongoing. Final calcLrlations and polenlial
impact on any specilic indivadualwill nol be known until lurther detailed analysis and solulions have been compleled.

To the extenl thal any obligalion cannot reasonably be quanlil ied at 31 Docember 2022, a contingenl liabil ty lor lhe school may exisl.

Addillonal fundlng wash up payment:

The Ministry of Educalion provided additional lunding lor bolh the Supporl Slall in Schools' Colloctive Agreem€nl (CA) Setllement and the
Teacher Aide Pay Eqully Setllemenl. The School has nol been notified o, the linal wash up calcu ation relating lo 31 Decembe. 2022. The linal
calculalions impact on the linancia, slatements is unable lo be determined at lhe date ol repoding.

25. Commllmsnls

(a) C.pltal Commllmsnls

A8 at 31 oecsmbor 2022lho Boarcl has not onlerod into any contract agrcemenls for capital works.

(Capilal commilrnenls in relation lo Ministry projecls at 31 December 2021: $317,029)

(b) Oper.tlng Commltmenls

As al31 Deceftber 2022lhe Boad has nol entered into any operaling contracls-

(Op€raling commitmenls at 31 December 2021: nil)

26. Flnanclal lnslrumonla

The carrying amount of linancial assets and liabililies in each ol lhe linancial instrumenl categoies are as loilovvs

Flnancial aaaels measured at amortl6ed co6l
N2.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
lnvestments - Term Deposits
Total Financial assels rneasured al amortised cosl

Aclual
$
805,713
364,889

1,698,421

2022
Budget

(Unauditod)
$
971,649
335,603

Aclual
$
974,271
335,603

1,677.836

2021

1,677,836
2,869,023 2.185,0

407,185 493,250 4S3,250
8l

Flnancial liabillties measured al amonised cosl

Payables
Finance Leases
Total Financial liabilities measured at amortised Cosl

r0 81

27. Evenls Alter Balance Dale

Thero were no signilicant events atter lhe balance date that impacl lhgse linancial slalements

28. Comparalives

There have b6en a number ol prior period comparalives which have been reclassified to make disclosure consislent with lhe currenl year

IBDO
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The Board accepts responsibility for the preparation of the annual financial statements and the judgements used in

these f inancial statements.

The management, including the principal and others as directed by the Board, accepts responsibility for establishing
and maintainjng a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the School's financial reporting.

It is the opinion of the Board and management that the annual linancial statements for the financial year ended 31

December 2022 lairly rellects the financial position and operations of the School.

The School's 2022 financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board

Mike Wriqht.lu1lan.Tames Witt

Full Name ol Presiding Member Full Name of Principal

t
Signature of Principal

Date: 31 Mav 2a23 Date: 31 14rU 2923

South Otago High School

Statement of Responsibility

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Signature ol Presiding Member

1



South Otago High School
Members of the Board
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Term
Expired/

How Position Gained ExpiresName

Jules Witt

Mike Wright

Paul Crawford

Bronwyn Campbell

Angela Ferguson

Emma Kell

Louise Simpson

Mike Beeby

Ryan Williams

Position

Presiding lVlember

Principal

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Parent Representative

Staff Representative

Student Representative

Elected

ex Off icio

Elected

Elected

Selected

Elected

Elected

Elected

Elected

Dec 2023

Sep 2022

Sep 2025

Sep 2025

Dec 2023

Sep 2025

Sep 2025

Oct 2023

2



South Otago High School
Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

Actual
$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

Actual
$

Notes

Revenue
Government Grants
Locally Raised Funds
lnlerest lncome

Expenses
Locally Raised Funds
Learning Resources
Administration
Finance
Property
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plani and Equipment

2
3

6,316,103
608,333

52,682

5,820,593
602,837

18,000

6,006,405
571 ,190

17,454
6,977,118 6,441,430 6,595,049

3
4
5

6

388,547
4,568,849

343,109
3,464

1,381,371
8,691

376,590
4,605,807

289,207

1 ,193,564
2,500

372,272
4,743,220

282,588
3,471

1,211,937
1,0'15

6,794,031

183,087

6,467,668

{26,238)

6,614,503

(19,454)Net Surplus / (Deflcit) for the year

Other Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

Tolal Comprehensive Revenue and Expense for the Year ffi

The above Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes which form part of these financial statements.

lBpo 3
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South Otago High School
Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes

2022

Actual

$

2021

Actual

$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

Equity al 1 January

Total comprehensive revenue and expense for the year
Contributions from the Ministry ot Education

Contribution - Furniture and Equipment Grant

Equity at 31 December

Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense

Equlty at 31 December

2,633,923 2,633,923 2,637,997

183,087 (26,238) (19,454)

15,380

2,817,010 2,607,685 2,633,923

2,817,010 2,607,685 2,633,923

The above Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity should be read in conjunction wilh the accompanying notes which

lorm part ot these linancial statements.

IBDQ 4
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South Otago High School
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2022

2022 2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

2021

Notes Actual
$

Actual
$

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable
GST Receivable
Prepayments
lnvestmenls
Funds Receivable for Capital Works Projects

working Capital Surplus/(Deticit)

Non-currenl Assets
lnvestments
Property, Plant and Equipment

7
8

805,713
364,889

'13,509

16,065
1,698,421

45,414

971,649
335,603

17,514
19,123

1,677,836

97 4,271
335,603

17,514
19,'1 23

1,677,8369
'16

11

12

13
'13

14
15
16

17
,18

19
20

I
10

2.944,011 3.021,725 3,024,347

407,185

385,066

493,250
13,801

345,396

493,250
13,801

115,000

37,735
20,539
16,044
46,534
38,678
49,297
1 0,170

44,976
14,447

347,029
46,534

44,976
14.447

347 ,029
46,534

1,069,580

1,A74,431

1,075,037

1,946,688

1,305,433

1,718,9'14

1.046,392 1.159,792 1,',100,292

1,046,392 1,159,792 1,100,292

Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings
Provision for Cyclical Maintenance
Painting Contract Liability
Finance Lease Liability
Funds held in Trust

1 03,813 498,795 185,283

Net Assels 2,817,010 2,607,685 2,633,923

2,817,010 2,607,685 2.633,923

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes which form part of

these financial statements.
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13

13
14
15

94,338

9.475

461,945

36,850

148,433

36,850
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Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Revenue Received in Advance
Provision for Cyclical Maintenance
Painting Contract Llabllity
Finance Lease Liabilty
Funds held in Trust
Funds held for CapitalWorks Projecls
Funds Held on Behalf of the ALLis Cluster
Funds Held on Behalf ol the Truancy Cluster
Funds Held on Behalf of the Big River Kahi Ako Cluster
Funds Held on Behalf of the Bi Cultural Support Worker Cluster

Equity



2022

Actual
$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

Actual
$

2021

Note

@
Government Grants
Locally Raised Funds
lnternalional Sludents
Goods and Services Tax (net)
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers
lnteresl Received
Net cash lrom/(to) Operating Activities

Cash llows lrom lnvesting Activities
Purchase of Property Plant & Equipmenl
Purchase ol lnvestments
Net cash (to)/trom lnvestinO Activilies

Cash flows lrom Financing Aclivitles
Furniture and Equipment Grant
Flnance Lease Payments
Funds Adminislered on Behall of Third Partles
Net cash (to)/lrom Financing Activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalenls at the end ol the year

1 ,662,444
612,051

4,005
(800,971)

(1 ,220,162)
34,979

(659.902)

(1,143,283)
18,000

(3,340)
(826,983)

(1,400,767)
374

(209,950)
(18,791 )

1,409,226
602,837

1.572,222
580,137

324,628 226.

(160,418)
(20,585)

(229,500)

(181,003) (229,500) (228,741],

(40,021)
(272,162)

15,380
(48,515)
556,716

(312,183) 523,581

(168,558) (2,622\ 239.483

974.271 974,271 734,788

805,7'13 971,649 974,271

The statement of cash llows records only those cash tlows directly within the control of the School. This means centrally

funded teachers' salaries and the use of land and buildings grant and expense have been excluded.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with lhe accompanying notes which form parl ol thes€

financial statements.
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South Otago High School
Statement of Gash FIows
For the year ended 3l December 2022
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South Otago High School
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

1. Statement of Accounting Policies

1.2, Basis oI Preparation
Beporting Period
The financial statements have been prepared for the period 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 and in accordance with the
requirements ol the Education and T.aining Act 2020.

Basis ot Prcparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, and the accounting policies have been consistently
applied throughout the period.

PBE Accounting Standards Reduced Disclosute Begime
The School qualilies for Tier 2 as the school is noi publicly acco!ntable and is not considered large as it falls below the

expend ture threshold of $30 million per year. A1l relevant reduced disclosure concessions have been taken.

Measurement Base
The linancial statements are prepared on the historical cosl basis unless otherwise noted in a specific accounting policy

Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in New zealand dollars, rounded to the nearest whole dollar

Specilic Accou nt i ng Pol i cies
The accounting policies used in the preparation ol these financial statements are set out below.

Ctitical Accounting Estimates And Assumptions
The preparation ol linancial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the

application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results may

dilfer lrom these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any tuture periods affected.

Cyclical Maintenance
A school recognises its obligation to maintain the [.4inistry's buildings in a good state of repair as a provision for cyclical

maintenance. This provision relates mainly to the painting of the school buildings. The estimate is based on the school's best

estimate ol the cost ol painting the school and when the school is required to be painted, based on an assessment of the

school's condition. During the year, the Board assesses the reasonableness ol its painting maintenance plan on which the

provision is based. Cyclical maintenance is disclosed at note '13

IJseful lives ot propeiy, plant and equipment
The School reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end ol each reponing date The School

believes that !he estimated useful lives ol the property, plant and equipment as disclosed in the significant accounting policies

are appropriate to the nature of ihe property, plant and equipment at reporting date Property, plant and equipment is

d sclosed at nole 10.

Critical Judgements in applying accounting policies

IBDO 7
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1.1. Reporting Entity
South Olago High School (the School) is a Crown entity as specified in the Crown Entities Act 2004 and a school as described
in the Education and Training Act 2020. The Board is of the view that the School is a public benefit entity lor financial reporting
purposes.

Financial Repoiing Standads Applied
The Education and Training Act 2020 requires the School, as a Crown entity, to prepare financial siatements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practice. The financial staiemenls have been prepared in accordance with generally

accepted accounting practice in New Zealand, applying Public Sector Public Benefil Entity (PBE) Standards Reduced
Disclosure Regime as appropriate to public benefit entities that qual fy lor Tier 2 reporting. The school is considered a Public
Benefit Entity as it meets the criteria specified as'having a primary objective to provide goods and/or services for community
or social benefit and where any equity has been provided with a view to supporting that primary objective rather than for

financial return to equity holders'.



l\,4anagement has exercised the lollow ng critical judgements ln applying accounting policies

C lassilication ol I e ases
Determining wheiher a lease is a linance lease or an operating lease requires ludgement as to whether the lease transfers
substantially all lhe risks and rewards of ownership to the school. A lease is classified as a finance lease if rt transfers
substantially all risks and rewards incidental to ownership ol an underlying asset to the lessee. ln contrast, an operating lease
is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee.
Judgemeni is required on various aspects that include, but are not limited to, the fair value ol the leased asset, the economic
lfe of the Ieased assel, whelher or not to include renewal options in the lease lerm, and determining an appropriate discount
rate to calc!late the present value of the minimum lease payments. Classif cation as a linance iease means the asset is

recognised in the statement of linancial position as property, plant, and equ pment, whereas lor an operating lease no such
asset is recognised. Finance lease liabilily disclosures are contained in note '14. Future operating lease commitments are
disclosed in note 25b.

Recognition of grants
The School reviews the granls monies received at the end of each reporting period and whether any require a provision to
carry loMard amounts unspent. The School believes all grants received have been appropriately recognised as a liability il
required. Government grants are disclosed at note 2.

1.3. Revenue Recognition

Government Grants
The school receives funding from lhe Ministry of Education. The following are the main types of funding that the School
receives.

Operational grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rlghts to the funding, which ls ln the year that the
funding ls received.

Teachers salaries grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the funding in the salary period to which
they relate. The grants are not received n cash by the School and are paid directly to teachers by the L4inistry of Education.

Other Ministry Grants for directly funded programmes are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the funding
in the period to which they relate. The grants are not received in cash by the School and are paid directly by the Ny'inistry of

Education.

The property from which the School operates is owned by the Crown and managed by the N.4inistry of Education on behall of

the Crown. Grants lor the use of land and buildings are not received in cash by the School as they equate 10 the deemed

expense for using the land and buildings which are owned by the Crown. The School's use of the land and buildings as

occupant ls based on a property occupancy document as gazetted by the Ministry. The expense is based on an assumed

market rental yield on the value of land and buildings as used lor rating purposes.

Thjs js a non-cash revenue thai is offsel by a non-cash expense. The use ol land and buildings grants and associated

expenditure are recorded in the period the School uses the land and buildings.

Other Grants where conditions exist
Other grants are recorded as revenue when the School has the rights to the iunding, unless there are unlultilled conditions

attached to the grant, in which case the amount relating to the unlulfilled conditions is recognised as a llability and recognised

as revenue as the conditions are fulfilled.

1.4. Operating Lease Payments
paymenls made under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense on a

straight line basis over the term of the lease.

1.5. Finance Lease Payments
Finance lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The

finance charge is allocated lo each period during the lease term on an effective interest basls.

'1.6, Cash and Cash Equivalents
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Donations, Gilts and Bequesls
Donations, gilts and bequests are recognised as an asset and revenue when the right to receive funding or the asset has

been established unless there is an obligation 1o return lunds il conditions are not met. l, conditions are noi met lunding is

recognised as revenue in advance and recognised as revenue when conditions are satislied.

lnlerest Revenue
lnterest Bevenue earned on cash and cash equivalents and investments is recorded as revenue in the period it is earned'



Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank balances, deposits held al callwith banks. The carrying amount of
cash and cash equivalents represeni lair value.

1.7. Accounls Receivable
Short-term receivables are recorded at the amounl due, less an allowance for expected credit losses (uncollectable debts).
The school's receivables are largely made up of funding from the Ministry ol Education, therelore the level of uncollectable
debts is not considered to be malerial. However, shon-term receivables are written ofl when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

1.8. lnvestments
Bank term deposits are initially measured at the amount invesled. lnterest is subsequently accrued and added to the
investment balance. A loss allowance lor expected credit losses is recognised if the estimated loss allowance is not kivial

1.9. Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and buildings or,vned by the Crown are excluded lrom these linancial statements. The Board s use ol the land and
buildings as 'occupant'is based on a property occupancy document.

lmprovements funded by the Board to buildings owned by the Crown or directly by the board are recorded at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairmenl losses.

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cosl or, in the case ol donated assets, ,ak value at the date ol receipt, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost or lair value as the case may be, includes those cosls that relate
directly to bringing the asset to the location where it will be used and makino sure il is in the appropriate condition lor its
intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals (i.e. sold or given away) are determined by comparing the proceeds received with the carrying
amounts (i.e. the book value). The gain or loss arising lrom the disposal of an item ol propeny, plant and equapment is

recognised in the Statement ol Comprehensive Bevenue and Expense.

Finance Leases
A finance lease transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ot an assel, whether or
not litle is eventually translerred. At the stan ol lhe lease term, finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in lhe
statement oi financial position al the lower of the lair value ol lhe leased asset or the present value ol lhe minimum lease
payments. The finance charge is charged to the Slatement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance ol lhe liability. The amount recognised as an asset

is depreciated over its useful life. lf there is no reasonabie certainty whether the school will obtain ownership at lhe end ol the
lease term, the asset is fully deprecialed over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life.

Deprcctation
Property, plant and equipment, except for library resources, are depreciated over lheir estimated uselul lives on a straight line

basis. Library resources are depreciated on a diminishing value basrs. Depreciation ol all assets is reported in the Statement

of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The estimated useful lives ol the assets are
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment
lnformalion and communication technology
l\,4otor vehicles
Leased assets held under a Finance Lease
Library resources

10-40 years
3-40 years
3-20 years
5-10 years
Term ol Lease
12.5% Oiminishing value

1.'10. lmpairment ol property, plant and equipment
The school does not hold any cash generating asseis. Assets are consldered cash generaling where lheir primary objective is

to generate a commercial relurn.

Non cash generating assets
Property, plant, and equipment held at cost that have a finite useful lile are rev ewed lor impairment whenever evenls or

changes in circumstances indicate that lhe carrying amount may not be recoverable. ll such indication exists, the School

estimates the asset's recoverable service amount. An impairment loss is recognised as the amount by which lhe asset's

carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount. Ihe recoverable service amount is the higher ol an assel's fair
value less costs lo sell and value in use.

Value in use is determined using an approach based on either a depreciated replacement cost approach, restoration cost

approach, or a service units approach. The most appropriate approach used to measure value in use depends on the nature

of the impairment and availability ol information.
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ln determining fair value less costs to sell the school engages an independent valuer to assess market value based on lhe
best available inlormation.

ll an assel's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable service amount. the assel is regarded as impaired and ihe carrying
amount is written down lo lhe recoverable amount. The total impairment loss is recognised in the Statement ol
Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The reversalol an impairment loss is recognised in the Statemenl ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. A previously
recognised ifipairment loss is reversed only if lhere has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's
recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

1.1 1. Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the School prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid. Accounts Payable are recorded at the amount ol cash required to settle those liabilities. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

Longlerm employee entitlements
Employee benefiis that are not expected to be settled wholly belore 12 months after the end of the reporting period in which
the employee provides the related service, such as retirement and long service leave, have been calculated on an actuarial
basis.

The calculations are based on the likely luture entitlements accruinO to employees, based on years ol service, years lo
entitlement, the likelihood that employees will reach the point o, entitlement, and contractual entitlement information, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows. Remeasurements are recognlsed in Statement ol Comprehensive Revenue

and Expense rn the period in which lhey arise.

1.13. Revenue Heceived in Advance
Revenue received in advance relates to fees received lrom students and qrants received where there are unfullilled

obligalions lor the School to provide services in the luture. The lees are recorded as revenue as the obligations are fulfilled

and the fees earned.

The School holds sutficient funds to enable the refund of unearned lees in relation to international studenls, should the School

be unable to provide the services lo which they relate.

1.14. Funds Held in Trust
Funds are held in trust where they have been received by lhe School lor a specified purpose, or are being held on behall of a

third party and these transactions are not recorded in the Statemeni ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The School holds sutficient lunds to enable the lunds to be used lor their inlended purpose at any time.

1.15. Funds held lor CapitalWolks
The school directty receives lunding from lhe Ministry of Educalion lor capitalworks projects that are included in the School

live year capital works agreement. These lunds are held on behall and ior a specified purpose as such these transactions

are not recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

The School holds sufficient lunds lo enable the lunds to be used lor their intended purpose at any time

1.16. Shared Funds
Shared Funds are held on behalf o, a cluster of participating schools as agreed with the Ministry ot Education. ln instances

where lunds are outside of the School's control, these amounts are not recorded in the Statement of Comprehens ve Revenue

and Expense. ln inslances where the school is determined to be the principal lor providing the service related to the Shared

Funds isuch as the Resource Teachers of LearninO & Behaviour programme), all income and expenditure related to the

provision of the serv ce is recorded in the Slaternent ol Comprehensive Revenue and Expense. The School holds sufficienl

funds to enable lhe funds to be used lor their intended purpose.

1.'t7. Provlslon for Cyclical Maintenance
The property lrom whi;h the School operates is owned by the Crown, and is vested in the Ministry. The Ministry has ga2etted

a property occupancy document thal sels out the Board's property mainlenance responsibilities'

lBpo
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t.12, Employee Entillements
Sho n- tem employee entitl e m ents
Employee entitlements that are expected to be settled wiihin 12 months afler the end ot the reporting period in which the
employees provide the related service are measured based on accrued entitlements at current rates of pay. These include
salaries and wages accrued up to balance date, annual leave earned by non teachang stall, but not yet taken at balance date.



Cycllcal maintenance, which involves palnting ot the School, makes up the most significant part of the Board's responsibilities
outslde the day-to-day maintenance. The provis on ls a reasonable estimate, based on the school's best estimale of the cost
gl pa nt ng the school and when the School is required to be painted, based on an assessment ol lhe school's condition.

The School carries out parntinq malntenance of the whole school over a variety of periods in accordance wlth the conditional
assessment ol each area of the school. The economic outilow ol lhis is dependent on the plan established by the School to
meel this obligatron and is detailed in the notes and disclosures of these accounls.

'1.'18, Financial lnstruments
The School's financial assets comprise cash and cash equivalenls, accounts receivable, and investments. All of these
financial assets, are initially recognised al fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, uslng the etfective interest
method.

The Schools financiaL liabilities comprise accounts payable and iinance lease liability. Financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. lnterest expense and any gain or loss on derecognition are

recognised in the Stalement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

1.19. Goods and Services Tax (GST)
The financial statements have been prepared on a GST exclusive basis, with the exception ol accounts receivable and
accounts payable which are stated as GST inclusive.

The net amount of cST paid to, or received from, the lRD, including the GST relating to investing and tinancing aclivities, is

classitied as a net operating cash flow in the stalements of cash llows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST

1.20. Budget Figures
The budget figures are extracted from the School budget that was approved by the Board

1.21, Services received in-kind
From time to time the School receives services in-kind, including the time ol volunteers. The School has elected not to

recognise services received in kind in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

IBDO
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2. Governmenl Grants

Governmgnt Grants - Minrstry ol Educalion
Teachers' Salari6s Granis
Use ol Land and Buildings Grants
Olher Governmonl Grants

The School has not opled in lo the donations scheme lor this year

3. Locally Ral.ed Furds

Local lunds raisod wilhin lhe School's communily are made up oli

Bavenue
0onallon6 & BequEsls
Curdculum related Activities - Purchase ol goods aM setuices
F6es for Extra Cunicular Aclivities
Tradim
Fundraising & Community Granls
Olher Revenue
lnlsrnalional Sludent Foos

Aclual
s

r,638,71 1

3,657,007
976,488

43,897

2022
Budgel

(Unaudited)
$

1,369,869
3.638.491

771,854
40,379

Actual
$

1,557,182
3,637,469

771,854
39,900

2021

6.316,103 5,820,593 6,006,405

2022

2A22

2022
Budgel

(Uhaudlted)
$
80,100

Actual
$
*,910

2021

Actual
$
74,O47

97,499
184,205
r96,445

3,960
50,143

34

188,004
178,100

7,000
149,633

184,023
176,387

3,960
151,910

Erporses
Extra Curicular Aclivilies Cosls
Trading
lniernational Sludenl - Studenl Recruilmont
lnlernational Student - Employee Benefil - Salaries
lnlernational Student - Other Expenses

161,890
205,900

2,300
1,000
5,500

161,213
210,914

4
34

107

602,837 571,190

184,997
203,539

tl
388547 376,590 372,272

219.786 226,247 198,918Surplus lor lhe year Locally aisod lunds

4. Learnlng Rosources

Curricular
lnlormalon and Communicalion Technology
Library Resources
Employee BeneliG - Salaies
Stalf Developmenl
Depreciation

2022

Aclual
$

264,665
fi,207

3,007
4,083,199

41,515

m22
Budget

(Unaudiled)
$
354,066

62.300
5,000

3,964,291
50,150

170,000

2021

Aclual

267,642
76,351

5,002
4,133,432

43,531
217

7 4,743

2022

Actual
$

7,407
4,835

10,325
s,752

15,058
7,294

1 1,1 15

228,406
34,902

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

7.407
5.500

10,500
6,100

13,150
10,000
14,450

182,100
25,000
15,000

Actual
$

7,191

5,002
11,612
5,864

13,561

9,939
16,039

175,22
23,076

Audit Feo
Board Fee6
Boad Expenses
Communicalion
Con6umables
Operaung L6ase
Other
Employee Benelals - Salaries
lnsurance
Ssruics Providers, Contraclo6 and Consullancy

IBDO
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5. Administration
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6. Property

Totallnveslments

2022
Sudget

{Unaudited)
$
21,500
56,900
83,116

7,500
52,450

2.200
39,520

771,854
6,500

2022 2021

Carelaking and Cleaning Consumablos
Consultancy and Contract Services
Cyclical Mainlenance Provlsion
Gro1rnds

Heat, Light and Water
Rates
Repairs and Maintenance
Use ot Land and Buildings
Securlty
Employee Benefits - Salaries

Aclual
$
22,314
53,204
32,901
23,003
59,333

1,311
43,285

976,488
8,537

160,995

Actual
$
30,035
53,183
60,843

7,819
52,127
2,243

66,519
771,854

6,963

The use of Land and Build ngs figure represents 57" ol the schools tota property value. Propertyvalues are eslablshed as pafi ot the nation-

wide revalualion exercjse lhat is conducted every 30 June for the M nistry ol Education's yeacend report ng pulposes.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Aclual
$

805,713

2022
Budget

(Unaudiled)
$
971,649

Aclual
$

974,271Bank Accounls
Cash and Cash Equivalonls for Statement ol Cash Flows

Receivables
lnlerest Receivable
Teacher Salaries Grant Receivable

Receivables kom Exchange Transactions
Receivables f rom Non-Exchanqe Transactions

9. lnvestments

The School's inveslment activities are classiiied as lollows

Current Assel
Shorllerm Bank Deposits

r52 424 160 351
1,381,371 1,193, 1, 11,

2022 2021

3l
364,889

805,713 971,649 974.271

The carrying value oi short-lerm deposits wilh original malurily dates of 90 days or Less approxlmales their fair value.

Ot the $805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $16,044ls held by the SchooL on behall ol the Ministry ol Education. These funds have been
provlded lor the 1\,4lnislry as parl of lhe school's 5 Year Agreement fund ng for upgrades to lhe schools bulhings. The funds are required to be

spenl in 2023 on Crown owned school buildings.

OI the $805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $38,678 is held by the School on behall of the Truancy clusler. See nole l8lor detarls ol how the

lunding received lor lhe clusler has been speni in the year.

OI the $805,71 3 Cash and Cash Equivalenls, 949.297 ls held by the Schoo on behalf of the Big River Kahi Ako COL clusler. See note 1 I tor

details of howthe Iunding recelved for the clusler has been spent in the year.

OI the 9805,713 Cash and Cash Equivalents, $10,170 is held by the Schoolon behall ol the B Cultural Support Workel clusler. See note 20lor
deta ls ol how the lund ng received lor lhe clusler has been spent n the year.

8. Accounls Receivable

2022 2D21

Actual
$
16,983
25.367

322,539

2022
Budgel

(Unaudiled)

$

9,452
7,664

Aclual
$

I,452
7,664

318 487

364.88s 335.603 33

2022 2021

42,350
322,539

17,|6
318,487

17,116
318,487

Aclual
$

1,698,421

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

1,677,836

Aciual
$

1,677,836

IBDO
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1,698,421 1,677,836 r,677,436
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10. Property, Planl and Equipmenl

2022.
Building lmprovemenls
Furniture and Equipmeni
lnlormalion and Communlcation Technology
Molor Vehicles
Leased Asssts
Library Resources
Bglahce al31 December m22

The net carrying value ol equipmenl held under a linance lease s $44,727 12021: $74,895)

Rostrictions
With lhe exception of the contractual resliclions relating to the above noted,inance leases, there are no other resrictions overlhe title ol lhe
school's property. plant aM equipment, nor are any properly. planl and equlpment pledged as security lor liabililies.

80.876 |0 119 84.986

11. Accounts Payable

2022

Building lmprovements
Furnilureand Equipment
lnrormation and Communication Technology

Loased Assels
Library Resources
Balrnce at 31 Decembet

mu
Coat or

Valuallon
$

1,084,017
1,585,539

669,976
197,620
'177,039

103,590

2022
Accumulated
Depreclatlon

$
(618,653)

11,219,714)
(s58,294)
(16r,540)

1132,312)

2022
Net Book

$
455,364
365,825
111,682
36,080
44,727
22,714

2021
Cost or

Valuallon
$

1,051,161
1,546,986

u2.498
197,619
173,153

m21
Accumulated
Oapreclatlon

s
(s7s,566)

(1,189,92r )

(532,094)
(140,319)
(9e,2s8)

2021

Nel gook

Value
s

475,495
357,065
110,404
57,300
74,895

Opening
Balancg (NBV) Additions Disposals lmpairmenl Depreciation Total (NBV)

$$ssss
475,495 44,857 (3,896) {51,092) it65,364

357,065 60,847 (52,087) 365,85
110,404 58,602 (2,620) (54,704) 111,682
57,300 - 121,220) 36,080
74,A95 13,74A ($,908) 44,727

25,133 3,001 (2,175) - (3,245) 22,714
1.100.292 181.047

133

Credilors
Accruals
Banking Stallino Overuse
Employoe Entitlemenls - Sala es
Employee Entitlements - Leave Accrual

Payables,or E)(chanqe Transactions

The carrying value ol payables approximales their lair valle

12. Revenue Received ln Advance

lnternal onal Sludent Fees rn Advance
Olher Revenue n Advance

2021

407,185 493,250 493 250
407,185 493.250 493 250

Actu.l
s
24.761

7,406
7,2*

336,794
30,966

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
s
128,693

7,191

1,022
331,395

24,949

Actual
$
128,693

7,r s1

1,O22

33r,395
24,949

Aclual
$
32,244

2022
Budget

(unaudiled)
$

2021

Actual
$

2022

2 13,801

IBDO
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13. Provlslon for Cyclical Maintenance

Provisron at the Slarl ol lhe Year
lncroasa to the Provision During the Year
Other Adiustmenls
ljse ol lhe Provisron During the Year
Provision al lhe End ol the Year

Actual
$

493,829
83,495
(50,594)
(46,326)

2022.
Budget

(l.Jn6udited)
$
493,823

83,116

Actual
$

F41,142
78,083

\17,240)
(108,156)

2022 2021

480,404 576,945 493,829

the School's cyclical maintenance schedule dglails annual painting & olher significant cyc|cal mainlenance work to be underlaken. The costs
associatod with lhis annualwolk will vary depending on the reqLrirements during the year. This plan is based on lhe School's most recent 10 Year
Property plan, adjusled as identified and conlirmed appropriaie by lhe 8oard, to other reliable sources ol evidence.

480.404 576,9.+5 493,829

14. Finance Lease Liabilily

The School has onlered inlo a number ol linance lease agreements lor compulors a.d other ICT equipm6nl. Minimum lease payments payable

2022 2021

47,210 81,826 8r,826

Cyclical Mainlenance - Currenl
CyclicalMainlenance - Non current

Repr.eshtod by:
Financo loaso liability - Current
Finaoce lease liability - Non currenl

Represented by:
Funds Held on Behalf of the M nislry ol Educalion

Funds Receivable lrom lhe l\,llinislry 01 Educalion

386,066
94,338

f 5.000
461,945

345,396
148,433

No Later than One Year
Laler lhan One Year and no Later than Five Years
Fulurg Financo Charges

Aclual

$
39,627

9,919
(2,336)

2022
audget

(Unaudlled)

$
47,574
38,080
(3,828)

Actual

$

47,574
38,080
(3,828)

37,135 44,976 44,976
I 475 36,850 36 850

8l 826

2022 2421

15. Funds Held in Trust

Funds Held in Trust on Behalf ol Third Partles - Curronl

Pomahaka Block Upgrade *2O46XS & 223973
Ring Water Main
Block D Moo,ficalron Access.oilily -'el: 2'9244
Eoiler Scheduled Work
Turl Outdoor Courl Resudacing *22A897
Paving and Retaining Walls #221626
Gymnasium Entrance & lnternal Maintenance
TotaLs

2022
Budgel

(l.Jnaudjted)Aclual

$
20,539

Aciual

$
14 7 l

$
1

Th6se funds relate lo arrangements where th6 Schoo! is acling as an agent, These amounls are nol revenuo or erpendilure ol thg School and

lhoroforg arB nol included in the Stalement o, Comprehonsive Revenue and Expense.

16. Fuhds Held lor CapltalWorks Prolects

Durino the year lhe School received and applied lunding llom lhe Ministry oI Educalion lor lhe tollowing capilalworks projects. The amounl of

cash held on b€halt ol the Ministry for capilalwolks proiGct is included under cash and cash equivalenls in nole 7.

2022
Opening Recelpls
Balances trom MoE

s$
Board

Contributions
$

Closing
Balances

s
20,458
5,760

65,147
750

162.000
92,914

43,712

20.000

Paymsntt
$
(64,170)

1172)
(74,691)

(7s0)
(172,139)
(123,851)

5,588
10,456

10,139
30,937

45 14 45

IBDO
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Pomahaka Elock Upgrade n204635 & 223973
Hall Window replacemenl
Ring Watsr Main
Block D Modilicalion Accessibility - rel: 219244
Pholocopying Room Flood Bepairs - 220933
Block F/K Bationalisation
Boiler Scheduled Work
Tur, Ouldoor Coun Besudacir.g f228ag7
Payn0 and Retalning walls #221626
Tolals

Openlng
BElEncla

t
1240,764)

(91)
8.400
(4,578)

1797)
450
750

2021
Recelpls

from ltroE
$

851,312
91

Payments
$

(s90.090)

Board
Contributions

$

Closlng
Balances

20,458

(2,640)
(60,275)

5.760
65.147130,000

797
(450)

162,000
94.914

750
152,000
92,914

i236,630) 1,238,317 (655,455) 797 347,O29

17. Funds Held on Behalf ol lhe ALLis Cluster

Soulh Otaoo H igh School s lhe lead school and holds Iu nds on behall Asran Languaoe Learning in School s Prog ram me (ALLis)

2022

Represented by:
F!nds Held on Behalf or lhe Minislry ol EducaUon

Funds Held at Beginning ol lhe Year
Funds Held al Year End

Actual
$
46,534

2022
Budgel

(Unaudited)
$
46,534

Actual
$
.{6.534

347,029

2021

26,534 46,534

Soulh Olaqo HiOh Schoolsigned a lunding ag.eement with the Ministry in September 2016, lor lhe set up & provision ol Asiafl language leachino
in lhe Soulh Oago area. Clusler Schools include Balclulha School(3710), Clinton School(3723), Clulha Va,ley (3724), Milton School(3772),
Bomahapa School (3811), Rosebank School (Balclutha) (3812), Slirling School (3836). St Joseph's School {Balclutha) (3826), Sl Marys School
(Milton) (3831), The Callins Area School(0394). TokoiliSchool (3845), Tokomairirc High School (0392) and Wai\,!€ra South School(3858).

18. Funds Held on Eehall ol the Truancy Clusler

South Otago High Schoo was the lead school and holds {unds on beha I ol lhe Truancy clusler, a group ol schools lunded by the Minislry ol
Education lo share professional suppon.

2022 20212022
Eudget

(Unaudiled)
$

Funds Hsld at Eeginning of ihe Year
Funds Roceiv6d lrom Olhers
Funds Spent on Behal, ol lhe ClLrster
Funds Held al Year End

Flnds Held at Beg nnlng of lhe Year
Funds Received lrom Cluster Mombers
Funds Received lrom lrinistry of Educalion
Funds Spenl on Behalf ol lhe Clusler
Funds Held al Year End

FLrnds Held at Beginning ol the Year
Funds Recaived lrom Ministry o, Educalion
Funds Sp€nt on Behall ol the Cluster
Funds Held at Year End

2022

Actual
$

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$

141,408
24,122

(r 12,233)

Aclual
$

53,617
(r4,939)

Aclual
$

38,678

19. Fuhds Held on Eehall ol the Big River Kahi Ako Clusler

South Otago High Schoolwas th6 lead schoo! and holds funds on bohall ol lhe 8ig River Kahi Ako COL cluster, a group of schools lundod by lho

Minislry ol Educalion to share prolessional suppon.

2021

Actual
$

4sZa97

20. Funds Held on Bohall ol the Bi Cultural Support Worker Clust.r

Soulh Otago Hlgh Schoolwas the lead school and hoids tunds on behall ol lhe 8i Cullural Support Worker cluster, a grolp ol schools funded by

the Minislry ol Education to share professional support.

2022 2021

Aclual
$

26,400
(16,230)

lBpo
BDO INVERCARGII-L

-ml7r

2022
Budget

(Unaudlted)
$

Aclual
$
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The School is a conlrolled entity ol the Crown, and lhe Crown provides the major solrce of revenue to the School. The School enlers into
transaclions wilh olher entities also conlrolled by the Crown. such as governmenl departments, slate-owned enterp ses and olher Crown enlilies
Transactions wilh these entitres are not drsclosed as they occur on lerms and conditiofis no more or less ravourable lhan lhose that it rs

reasonable to expecl lhe schoolwoirld have adopled i, dealing wjlh that enlily al arm's length.

Remuneralion
Ful[lime equivalenl members

Related party disclosures have nol been made ,or lransaclions with related parlres that are wilhin a normal supplier or clienyrecipienl rclalronshlp
on lerms and condilion flo more or less lavourable lhan lhose thal il is reasonable lo expecl lhe school would have adopled in dealing wilh the
party at arm's length in lhe same circumslances. Furlher, lransactions with other government agencies (lor example, Government depaimenls
and Crown enlilies) are not disclosed as rolaled pany lransactions wheo lhey are consistenl with the normaloperaling arrangements b€tween
government aggncies and und€naken on lhe normal lerms and condilions lor such transaclions.

22. Remunerataon

4,835 5,002

K 6 y man age fi efi I @rs o nnel co mW n sat i on
Key mamgom€nt porsonnalot thg School includo alllruslees ol lhe Board, Principal, Deputy and Assislant Principals, Sanior Leadership Suppoi
and S€nior Stal, P6rson.

2022
Actual

$

2021
Aclual

$
Boatd Members
Remuneralion

21. Reialed Pany Transaclions

The tolalvalue ol rgmuneration paid or payablo to lhe Principal was in tho lollowing bands:

Other Employees
The number of othsl gmploy€es w h remunoration Orealer lhan $100,000 was in the lollowing bands

638,320
5.00

610,852
5.00

Total key managemenl personnel remuneralion

There are seven mefibels ol lhe Board excludlng the Pr nclpal. The Board had held tweLve luLl meeiings ol lhe Board in the year. The Board also

has live Finance and live Propeny members. They meel rnonthly, the week prior to the Board meetings. As well as lhese reg!lar meelings,
including preparalion lime, lhe Presiding l\rember and olher Eoard members have also b€en involved n ad hoc rneetings lo conslder studenl

wollare mattors including sland downs, suspensions, and olher disciplinaly matters.

Sala es and Olher Shorl-term Employee Benelits:
Salary and Olhor Paymenls
Benefits and other Emolumenls
Termination B€nefils

2022
Actual
$000

175-180
4-5

2021
Aclual
$000

160 - 165
4.5
0-0

0-0

Remuneratlon
$o0o

100 ,1 10

110 -120

2022
FTE Number

7.00
6.00

2021

FTE Number
6.00
6.00

r3.00 12.00

The disclosuro lo.'Other Employees' does nol include remuneralion ol lhe Principal.

23. Compenaallon and Ohet Benetllr Upon Lerving

The total value ol compensation or other benelils paid or payable to persons who ceased to be lrusiees, committee members, or employees

duing lhe linancialyoar in rclation lo that cessalion and number ol persons to whom allor part ol that totalwas payable was as lollowsi

2022 2021

Tolal
Number ol People

SS

IBDO
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There are no conUngenl liablll es and no conlingent assels except as noled below as at 31 Decernber 2022 (Co.tinqenl ljabilities and assels al
31 December 2021: nil).

Holidays Act Compliance -schools payroll
The Ministry ol Education perlorms payroll processrng and paymenls on behali oi boards, through payrollservice provider Education Payroll
L mited.

The Mlnistry's review of the schools sector payroll lo ensure compliance with lhe Holidays Act 2003 s ongoing. Final calculations and polential

impacl on anyspeclic rnd vidualwill not be known untillurlher delailed analysis and solul ons have been completed.

24. Contingencies

25. Commllmehts

(a) Capltal Commlhents

As at 31 December 2022 the Board has not onterod into any contract agreements lor capital works.

(Capital commitmenls in relation to Ministry projects al31 December 202l: $347,029)

(b) Operaling Commilmenls

As al31 December 2022 the Board has nol enlered inlo anyop€rating contlacts.

(Operaling commitments at 31 Docembor 2021: nil)

26. Financlal lnslruments

The carrying amount ot financial assels and liabilities in each ol lhe linancial inslrument calegories are as lollows:

Flnanclal assets measured at amonised cosl
2022

To lhe extenl lhal any oblgalion cannol reasonably be quanlllied al 31 December 2022, a contingenl abilty for the school may exisl.

Additional funding wash up payment:

The N,ilinistry ol Education provided addilional lunding lor both lhe Suppo Stall n Schools' Colleclive Agreernent (CA) Setllement and the
Teacher A de Pay Equily Settemenl. The School has nol been nol fled of the lina wash up calculalion relaling to 31 December 2022. The Iinal
calculalions impacl on the Iinancial stalemenls is unable lo be delermined a1lhe date o, reportrng.

Cash and Cash EqLrivalenls
Receivables
lnveslments - Term Deposits
Total Financial assels measured at amortised cost

Actual
$
805,713
364,889

1.698,421

2022
Budget

(Unaudited)
$
971,649
335,603

1,677,836

Actual
$
974,271
335,603

1,677,836

2021

,,869,013 2,985,0

Financial liabllities measured al amorlised cost

Payables
Finance Leases
Total Financial liabilities rneasured at amorlised Cosl

407,185
41,210

493,250
81,826

493,250
81,826

27, Events Alter Balance Dale

There were no signilcanl evenls after the balance date that lmpact these IinanciaLstatements.

28. Comparatives

There have been a number of prior p€tiod comparalives which have been reclassilied lo make dlsclosure consistent wth lhe current year

IBDO
BDO INVERCARGILL
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Analysis of Variance Reporting
J

South Olago l-ligh School 393School Nam6 School Numbsr

Targeting studenl learning at Y9+10 through inquiry learning to raise the achievement lor both at risk of not achieving and at
risk of not reaching their full potential. Use of strategies for differenliated learning to enhance sludent engagement and
achiovement

Raising the nlmbels of students in Y9+10 who gain ment aM excellence endorsements in their junior courses

Year 10 cohort to maintain or improve the endorsemenl rate that they cunently hold at Yg (28)

2020 Y9 3t 129%1 3 (3%)

2020 Y10 4L l49v.l t8l22vol
2021Y9 20 (16%) 112.s%l
2021Y10 34132%1 11 (10%)
Junior Merit / Excellence badges

Results for 2022

32M 10E

40 M 10E

3 l3%J
19 (1670)

Y9 {101) 25 l2so/4
Y10 (120) 42 l3s%l

Strategic Aim

Baseline Dala

Target

vinl.lry of a*atd Ana\€rs of v.€nce R.ron'.g fleaZEalad Carerftrlenl
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Annual Aim:
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Analysis of Variance Reporting
t

:-4,

Teachers continued lo develop
and utilise differenliated Iearning
stralegies. This contributed
towards the oulcomes for
students. Whilst lhe Yg
achievement was lower than
expected. This was predicted to be
32 M and 10E against lhe 25 and
3 which was aclually received. Y10
data exceeds expeclations with a
prediction of40M and 10E with 42
and 19 respectively.

Part ofthe issue was the quality of
data that is received from the
pr mary schools which over
eslimates the abilrties tor students
when theyarrve as Yg.

Teachers engaged rn Professional
developmenl which extended lheir
understanding and application of
differentialed learning slrategies

The first oari of 2023 will be a
continuation of embedding the
good practice and wo*ing towards
a more consistent approach to
differentlation.

The high schoolwill continue to encourage inter school moderalion for Y8 sludents so that a more accurate understanding of student achievement
is developed which is consistenl across the conl buting schools

Planni.rg for next year

Ac8on6
Whal dld ve do?

Outeomo6
What happsned?

Reasons for fhe va ance
Why dtd lt happen?

Evaluation
Where to next?

Mini6try of Edu.auon Anavs s olvanan@ Reponin! !qa.&a@ 6ove'nnr€nt
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--
Developing capacity for teachers to engage in hybrid teaching rnodel which facilitates engaging teaching and learning to
allow stLrdent5 to learn online or face to face.

To explore and promote teaching and learning opportunities to keep students engaged and actively participating in
their learning.

Teachers to be confident and able to deliver and engaging teaching and learning programme which allows students to
continue their learning despite absence from school.

Anecdotal data from conversations with teachers highlights the need to promote st!dent engagement post the 2021
lockdown. This data suggests that student engagement was low at a critical time of year lAugust) when teachers were
attempting to complete internals and prepare for external assessments,

Teachers had to revisit teaching work once face to face learning re-commenced in September adding time press!re at a
busy time of the school year.

Strategic Aim

Basdlin€ Dala

Target

Mini5rryol tuucation TSlartanoararaunga
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Annual A;m:
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Analysis of Variance Reporting

Continue to maintain good practice and look for further development. However, lhe need for'hybrid teaching'is probabiy qoinq to be reduced as the
world exits rhe pandemic. The challenge that is ansing ls lhe retention of studenls over the 16 years of age and ensuring that lhose that do leave
(including those with an early leavin

Shar ng of straleg es and selting
up wilhin school experts.

Feedback or1 what support
teachers wanted

Tria I of strategies early on in the
school year

Engagemenl was better for those
who were isolat nq. There were
stil challenges for students who
were unwel and not able lo work
and there was no consstent
pattern to the student ab lty to
work if Cov d positive

Studenl engagement rema ned an
issue which was exasperated by
the risks of long covid' where
studeots were encouraged to'rest
and recuperate' when they were
confirmed covid cases.

ln addilion, a number of students
dur ng the last 2+ years have had
part lime work as 'essentia
workers and have been offered
fuil lime employmenl as a result.
This challenges retention and
conUnuity of educaton,

Teachers quickly adapted their
prograrnme delivery to support
both oniine and face to face
delivery.

Teache.s continue to provide
online resources and assislance to
students. This is particularly
helpfulas sludents prepared for
external NCEA assessments. For
many there was a libraryof
resources' available online which
they could refer to as they studies.

Teachers will cont nue to provide
support onlne. ln lhe first part of
2023 the need for hybrid learning
has reduced,

Aclions
What dld we do?

Outcomes
What happened?

Roasons for lh. variarc€
Why dtd lt happen?

Mini6lry of Educalion AnaryssorVarance Reporlnq NMTealand Gmrlfunr
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have a good pathway for onqolng learning and development.

Evaluatios
Where to next?

Planning for next yeai



Provide learnlng opportunitles to support the we lbeinS of students and staff

Provide opportunities to support the wellbeing of staff and students.

To implement a planned programme of earning opportunities and interventions to support wellbeing

Wellbeing in school NzcER survey resultsTerm 3 2020 students and staff (copy available upon request)

PB4L Restorative Practices baseline data surveys students and staff
Skylight data Year 9 students.

Strategic Aim

AnnualAlm

Baseline Dala

Target

M inl.ty ot Edlcallon ITalarLnqa B6lnqa
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Outcomes
What happened?

Reasons tor the variance
Why did it happeh?

Evaluatio.
Where to next?

Term 1-4 communications wilh
a wellbeing foc!s from staff,
newsletter, facebook,
magazine, assernbly
messages
Term 4 development of a
student supporl document
Term 4 development of
wellbeing resources
Term 1-4 investigation of
programmes and activities to
supporl students and slaff eg
good to great, mental hea,th
foundalion
Staff engagemenl in wellbeing
initialives for staff promoted by
staff
Encouraging sludent
leadership eg anti-vaping
Promotion of whole school
wellbeinq days eg pink shirt,
rainbow, menlal health

&rllying prevention nitiaUves
and staff meeting 24106,
student leadersh p

Conlinuation of programmes
such as travellerc to build
resilience tenn 2, skylight data
was analysed and students at
isk identified forthe
programme

The statl survey June 2022
provided us with a huge range of
information from 26 staff. This was
showed a generally supportive and
respectful environment. Of most
concern to us was aspects of
aggressrve student cuhure thal led
to the development of our siudent
survey. We invest gated aspects
such as bullying type behavours
and safety. A previous stafi suNey
was completed in 2020 however
the information from these surveys
rs cornplex and factors such as the
Covid 19 pandemic, along with
relevance of some of the qLrestrons
to our context make it difficult to
conpare resulls.

-We willcontrnue to have a
wellbe;ng focus and use lhe
models ofTe Whare Tapa Wha
and Five Ways to Wellbeing in our
whole school approach.
-The Wellbeing@school action
plan developed can be revisited at
the beginning of 2023 to remind
staff of targels and planned areas
to support studenl wellbelng.
-The area of wellbeing s a g.owth
area and we will continue to
investigate prograrnmes and
prof essional development to
support our students and staff, we
may need to maintain focus with
this so lhat we target specific
areas and do not become
oveMhelmed with too many areas
to develop in 2023 eg we have
requested a Mental Heallh
Fo!ndation workplace wellbeing
slaff session to support
prof essional development.
-Senior leadership can meet at the
stan of 2023 to develop targets
within their own areas of
responsibilily eg attendance,
mentoring, PB4L
-Wellbeing has been a focus within
2022 currculum review documents
this may help identify any
studenVteacher needs heading
into 2023

-The studenl survey (170
responses) provided us with more
speciflc information that could then
be developed into an achievable
action plan for SlT/staff. Thiswas
most effecUve in providing us with
sludent voice on lssues that were
of concern to students eg toilet
areas,
-70 Year I students completed the
Skylight survey to identiry students
al risk as they enter high school.
This rnformation is very valuable lo
the pastoral team and helps to
identify students for the Travellers

numbers increased

Mini6try of Ed@rlion Anats's ol Vanan@ Reporl .q lgszeilq!!1 Go!€,nmer1
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Aciiot}s
What did we do?

. NZCER slaff s!ruey'17/06

. SOHS developed sludent
survey 14109

. Collaborative PLG discussron
wellbeing 2/1'1

. Year l3leadership
presentations

. StaffWellbeing updates term 1-
4

. Action plan developed 22106
collaboralion with SLT and slaff

. Whole staff protessional
development restorative
practices 4/03 and bullying
prevention 2/05, stalf sharing of
ideas eg. NraLrri Ora, I\ranaging
Anxiety, Thrive

o Start ofthe year strategic goals
discussed with staff.

. Skylight survey completed by
all year I students lerm 1



thrs year for the programme,
student feedback was very
posltive.

-We will continue to use data to
help our aclions to support siafl
and student wellbeing and will
need to look critically at lhe
amount of requests for lnformation
ihat we ask people to complete as
ncreas ngly schools are being
asked 1o complete a n!mber of

-Resourc ng and funding will need
to be available in 2023 to support
oLrr approach, department reviews
may provide some evaluation lnto
needs of different departrnents,
new programmes will need
budgeting support, staff will require
support for developments wrlhin
their roles

-Actions were taken through
sharlng data with staff in staff and
senior leadership meetings eg
increased duly and safety through
installation and use ofcameras,
focus on P84L values. We are
continu ng to work on a whole
schoolapproach.

resilience which will be addressed with stralegies and resources utilised to support the solulions to these issues.
anxiety andWellbeing willcontinue to be a focus exit from the pandemic.the school (andAS are cont nu ng ssues

Planning lor next year

MiniEtry of Education TEbrlanga raraunga
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lle: Kin isport Iunrling 2022

Ki*'ispon is a governmenl fulded initiative to suppor{ students' participation in r:rganised

sport. During 2022 the school reeeiveel total Kirvisport funding of Sl 1.176.77. 'fhe funding rvas

spent on the employment ofa Sports Coordina(rr rto is ernployed firr 25 hours per week during
term time .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE READERS OF SOUTH OTAGO HIGH SCHOOL'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The Auditor-General is the auditor of South Otago High School (lhe School). The Auditor-General has
appointed me, Aaron Higham, using the staff and resources of BDO lnvercargill, to carry out the audit
of the financial statements of the School on his behalf.

Opinion

ln our opinion the financial statements of the School

its financial position as at 31 December 2022; and

its flnancial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with Public
Sector - Public Benefit Entity Standards, Reduced Disclosure Regime.

Our audit was completed on 31 May 2023. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis for our opinion is explained below. ln addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board
and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we comment on other information, and we
explain our independence.

Basis for our opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the lnternational Standards on Auditing (New
zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards-

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufflcient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board for the financial statements

The Board is responsible on behalf of the School for preparing financial statements that are fairly
presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.

The Board is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it to prepare

flnancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

o

o

BDO INVERCARGILL
136 Spey Street
P O Box 1206
lnvercargill 9840, New Zealand

We have audited the financial statements of the School on pages 3 to 18, that comprise the statement
offinancial position as at 31 December 2022, the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense,
statement of changes in net assets/equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that
date, and the notes to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

present fairly, in all material respects:
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BDO INVERCARGILL
136 Spey Street
P 0 Box 1206
lnvercargill 9840, New Zealand

The Board's responsibilities, in terms ofthe requirements ofthe Education and Training Act 2020,
arise from section 87 of the Education Act 1989.

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in
accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. l\4isstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise
from fraud or error. lvlisstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the flnancial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, we exercise
professionaljudgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also:

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufflcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the School's internal control.

We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board.

We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by
the Board and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conctusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the School to cease to continue as a going concern.

We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsible on behalf of the School for assessing
the School's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board is also responsible for disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless
there is an intention to close or merge the School, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

For the budget information reported in the financial statements, our procedures were limited to
checking that the information agreed to the School's approved budget.
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We assess the risk of material misstatement arising from the school payroll system, which
may still contain errors. As a result, we carried out procedures to minimise the risk of material
errors arising from the system that, in our judgement, would likely influence readers' overall
understanding of the financial statements.

We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of lhe
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identiry during our audit.

Our responsibilities arises from the Public Audit Act 2001.

The Board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the informalion
included on page 2 and on pages 19 to 26, but does not include the financial statements, and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the flnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial slalements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Aaron Higham
BDO lnvercargill
On behalf of the Auditor-General
lnvercargill, New Zealand

,4,Ulgl,^

Other information

lndependence

We are independent of the School in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-
General's Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and

Ethical Standard 1 lnternational Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New

Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board.

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with or interests in the School.


